UNITED NATIONS
ECONOMIC

AND

SOCIAL COUNCIL

GENERAL . .

E/CN.2/SR.46
30 March 1951

ORIGINAL: ENGL

CONTENTS ¢

TRANSPORT AND COMMUNICATIONS COMMIUSTON
Fifth Se951on

Hb;d a} Hbadquurters, New xork

on Tuesday, 20 March 1951, at 10 a,m,

- Establishment of a sub-committee to prepare'a review of the worx of
the Commission: item 12 of the agenda (E/Ci.2/93/Rev.2)

' Communications by the Secretariat: item 10 of the agenda
(B/CN.2/93/Rev,2) o

Chaivmans

(a)

(b)
(c)

@

(e)

(£)

‘ the Inter-governmental Maritine Consiltatlve Organization

(e)

Regional developments in the field of inland transport
(E/cN,2/102, E/CN,2/102/Corr.1 and E/CN,2/102/Add.1)

Travel questions: developments in 1950 (E/Ci.2/103)

Barriers to the international trensport QT gooda RIS
(E/CN 2/ 10, E/CN 2/104/4dd,1) ,

Uhlfication of maritime tonnage measurement (E/CN 2/10%)

Problems of maritime shipping affeotlng Iatin America
(E/CN,2/106)

Situation in respect of ratifization of . the Conveut:on on

(E/CN 2/107 and E/CN.2/107/Ac%.1)

Situation in respect of ratification of the Convention on
Road Traffic (E/CN,2/ 108) ,

~ Mr, OYEVAAR - Netherlands '~



E/CN.2/SR.46
Page 2

k.

Members: ‘Mr, SHEVETZOV Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic
Mr, PLAZA Chile
er. HSTAO China
Mr. FARID Egypt
Mr. GOURSAT France
Mr, SUKTHANKAR India
Mr. FOIEN | Norway "
Mr. KHALIL Pakistan
Mr., SZYMANOWSKI Poland
Mr. SUYAZOV' Union of Soviet Socialist Republics
" Sir Osborne MANCE United Kingdom of Great Britain and
' ‘ B Northern .Ireland
Mr. BAKER United States;mf‘_America :
Mr. REINA = . . . Venézuela
Representative . of specimlized agencies: o : .
Mr. DAWSON ' ' Int‘ernéfional Lebour Orgenization (ILO)
Mr. HILL World Health Organiid‘é‘ion (WHO)
Mr, HUTCHISON I;ntémét‘i'o'n:al Civil Aviation Organizatior
(ICAQ) |
' Mr. WUBNIG ' Trnternational Benk for Reconstruction
Core g - and Development
Mr. CARNES United Nations Educational, Scientific
S and Cultural Orgenization (UNESCO)
Representative of non- _governmental organization: R
Mr. GAVIGAN World Touring and Automobile
Organization (OTA)
Secretariat:
Mr. LUKAC Director of vthe Division of Tranaport

Also presentt

and Qommuni cations

. Mr, CHARGUERAUD-BARTMANN Director of the Division of Transport

of the Economic Commission for Europe
(ECE)

/ESTABLISHMENT



E/CN.2/SR. 46
Page 3

ESTABLISHMENT OF A SUB-COMMIPPEE TO. PREPARE A REVIEW OF THE WORK OF THE COMMISSIOI
The CEAIRMAN recalled the suggestion of the United Kingdom repiesenta—
tive that a sub~committes of four members might be set up to draft with the
Secretariat, a review of the Commission's work for oonsideration at a later sta o
The Commission had decided at its preceding meeting that such a report should be
prepared, and the customary and expeditious practice was to assign ‘that task to &

drafting committes, The Vice-Cheirman .of the Commission (the representative of
India) end the representatives of France, Poland and the United States might
constitute that drafting body. ' - R

Mr. SUYAZOV (Union of Soviet. Socialist Republics) a.nd Mr. s *erov
(Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic) saw no need for the establishment of a
drafting committee. The USSR representative thought that the Sccretariat of the
Transport and Communications Division could prepare a satisfactory report and
that,: in the meantime, the members of the Commission vwere free to consult the
dooumentary material aveilable, The Byelorussian representative did not think N
that. a. report or a general survey vas necessary. Moreover, he understood that thc
question ‘was to be discussed under item 12 of the agenda.‘

In reply to an inquiry by the CHAIRMAN, Mr, SZYMANOWsK L (roiana;
declined to serve on a drafting committee, first because he obJected to the
constitution of such a body and saw no.need’forda speoiai‘report, and secondly
because he did not consider himself guaiified to evaluate thetCommissioﬁls work
as he was- taking part in it for the first time. o |

Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kingdom) suggested thevreﬁresentative of B
Chile as the fourth member of the drafting committee. The representative of
Chile expresges his willingness to serve. |
. The CHAIRMAN announoed that the oommittee would be composed of the
representatives of India, Chile, Franoe and the United States. In consultation
with the Secretariat, it.would prepare & draft report on the work of the
Commission and the subject of that Treport would ultimately be coneidered under
item 12. of .the agenda. .
It was so decided.

/ COMMUNICAT TONS



E/CN.2/SR.46
Page 4

COMINICATIONS BY THE SECRETARIAT: I'EM 10 OF THE AGENDA (E/CN.2/9 /Pev,2)

« LUKAC (Secretaria.t) explained that the doclmentation undex 1tem 10
was mbanded 4o inform: the. Commiesion of d.evelopments which had taken place sirco .
the last :session m reapect of matters on which no further a.ction wa8 requlred. ,
The addenda .set forth the most recent. developmants.

(a) Reglonsal developments in the Tieid of 1nland -bra.nsnort (E/CH, _ALOQ,
E./CN _/mejCorr.l and E/CN.2/10 JAdd 1).
. IUKAC (Secretariat), noting that questions of inland trensport were
primrily regional, reviewed the contents of document E/C‘V 2/ 102, whic‘:t summarizeu

the work done -in-the. various regions both where United Nationa reg;onal -

commias fons operated and where they did not. Tke Commise 1on should be especially
gratified by the establishment of an inle.nd tre.nsport committee within the _
Economic Commission for Asia a.nd the" Far Ea.st (ECAFE) and by the compilation of a
programme of -priorities for deal"ing ‘with rail, road a.nd mland wqtemy transport

‘ \The Economic end- Sociel Council hed’ taken note of the resolution on

inla.nd transport addpted by the. Econonic’ Commission for Lat:ln fmerica (ECLA),
reported on page 10 of document E/CN.2/ 102, and no additional machinery hed been
created. Froblems of inland transport vwere to be dealt with t,hrougn combined
technical and ‘economic surveye fade under the Tecl'm:lca.l Assist tence Programme.

. 8ince the Council hed postponed. tha eatablishment. of an Econom.uc L v
Commission for the Mfddle East, the recommendation for & meeting of experts on th. .
inland transport of that area could not. be carried out. ‘

Mr., Lukac left to Mr. Chargueraud-Hartmann, Director of the Tra.nsport
Division of the ECE, the task of informing the Commission of recent transport
developments in Europe. S o

c b
5.

Mr. CHARGUERAUD-EARTMANN (Director of the Tremsport Division of ECE)
said that there was but little to add to the mformation already 111 the documents
before thei.Commissions At a meeting of tha Working Party on Co-ordination of .
Transport of. the I'C of ECE held in Ganeva In February, consideration had been
given to the factors affect ing the compa.ra'bility of various- proposed studies on
the interpational level. - Studies were to be made of the true .cost of transport,
tariff structure, trensport potential, needs of users and quality of service,

[organization of



E/CN,2/SR.46
Page 5

orgamiya.ti‘on of the transport industry a.nd oonditions of employment. The Workiﬁ(
Pe.rty had aahed govéernments to submit information on all. thoee topics , perticulerl
on road and inlend - waterway tra.neport rates, by June. 1951, In studying needs cof
traneport ueere and qu.ality of service, the Working Party hed taken into accoun*.
studies ma.de by‘ the I.trﬁernational Chamber of Coumerce and had recommerded that '
netional etudies should be- guided by the need to determine.:the importa.nce of two -
essentia.l factors in the co-ordiration of transport: freedom of choice of the
means of transport by users; and freedom to operate transport "on own account’.
The ILO had undertaken a comparative study on crnditions of ‘employment in the
various branches of the transport industry which would be completed es soon as
replies hed been received from &ll governments. ‘

' A meeting of ‘statistical experts had been held in Geneva. in the first
week o:f March to consider problems of raod statistics, The lack of data on thet
sub:(ect was hampering the co-ordinetlon of trensport. . The Working Party had been
_groatly esslsted by twy statistlcal experts, one from the United Kingdom
""‘appointed by the Secretary-Gemeral end the other a Member of the United States
"'delega.tion. Preliuinery trials were to be mede in European countries by statis-
ticel ee.mplyi':g wethods. Within a year certein accu:cate compere.tive etatistice
on road tre.nsport Bhould’ be e.veila.ble. ’

In cormexion with trensport of periehebles ’ detailed studies hed been
"made on pecking and refrigeration apnd were to be co-ordinated by the Working
AP&?ty" . . .
. ; Developmente concerning rail transport had been a.deque.tely eumme.rized
on page 7 of dooument. E/CN.2/102, = A Working Perty vas alming at e uniform plan
to obtain compareb]:e data on costs of/'ox toe varioue Buxr opeen railroed networks., .

‘ _  With regard to roed transport, regional egreements had been concluded
zon weight andaimeneione of vehicles and & more deteiled rule of the road in
conformity ‘with the intermational convention. on that subJect. A Working Party
wa.s strivi.ng to organize road transport on an interna.tional level without Ancurring
| ruinous .competition -Wwith reilvaysd,. ‘A _oon:t_‘,erence ‘had been held in Berne on the
autocar services. - '

Working Partles were e.leo studying the tra.nsport of dangerous goods
;'by road ‘and - inlend ‘water,. and the hendling of such goods at porte. The nouwsn-
’ olo.ture of de.ngeroue goo:de for: rajlvay’ ‘Qra.nepqrt hed been criticized by certain
" Baropean” countr:les and the. Bérme Office vas reviewing the ce.tegories and

studying new oleaeiﬁca.tiona.- .
a /‘I'he iAInland, |



E/CN.2/SR.46
Page 6

The Inlend Transport Committee attached great importance to rosd safety

in view of the high human end material losses due to road accidents. "I“o"r'ediicé
those losses there was a.need not only for the unificetion of roed s.g'mls and
other regulationq_ but also for & .campaign of education to:be underteken by =
tourist and awtomobile agsociatlons, Much work was belng done also throagh the
Red Cross Organization, . Finally, & working perty had bees dé&ling w.d:.h the
networ_k -of main internationel traffic arteries, & question of Anterest éven to
some countries of the Near East, :

The CHAIRMAN noted that meny of the factors discussed by the Director
of the Transport Division of ECE would be considered by the Commiesion under *
various items of the agenda, :
It was gratifylng to note that ECAFE.had declded to set - ‘up an inla.nd
tra.naport committee which, while: it would not slavishly follow the exhmple of =
ECE -- for the probleus in the two regions were-different -- would be ‘guidéd .by
the experience of the European group,-

Mr. SUKTEANKAR (India) recalled thet ‘the Indien delegation to’ ECAFE hed -

been first to propose the establishment of such & committee; 1t wes particularly '
gsatisfied with its terms of reference, As the problems of the Fer East and '
Asian eres were different frow those of Europe, the Coumittee would o well
merely to examine without being wholly guided by the ECE experience. |

The representative of India did not eppreciate the value of establish:
ing en Asian end Fer Eastern ReilWoy Assocletion; in view of tho smell’ v"‘olume of
international traffic in the arsu ens wide di*‘fermces 1n-railvey gaugse. On the
other hend, en inquiry into reilwey aignalling would ‘be usefdl ‘end‘India would®'
be prepared to consider how far it could co-operate in one. ' The propdsed: pmlot
project under the United Natlions expanded technical dssistance programme on
inland and water -trensport in the area promised to be iseful to India.’ In the
past India had studied'the irrigastion aspects of inland wstervays but had not
contemplated their use es channels of communication. Any possibie ‘strdin on
rallroads in the area might well be relleved by the development of inland water=

wey transport.

* Mr, KHALIL (Paklsten) also welcomed the -creation: of aninlend’ tra.naport '

committee within ECAFE, Be saw ne need”for an‘'Asien and Fer Bagtern Bailwa.y
Assoclathn and would prefer that matters of rail trensport Should' be dealt’ with °
by suvb-committees of the new committee. /M., LURAC

‘



E/CN.2/SR.46
Page 7

Mr, LUKAC (Secretariat).noted that the. Ad Hoc Committee of Experts
vhich hed proposed - the creation of the inlend transport. committee of ECAFE had
also recommended that it ehould set up sub-committees to deal W1th road railway
and inlend weterway transport. - o

In connexion with the inland waterways pilot project under the tecanics
agelstance programme it was significant that, on the day after the olose of
ECAFE's session, the Director of the Technical Assistance Administration had
informed the regional commission of acceptance, of the plan., The ECAFE Secretar!at
had appointed experts to study the su‘b,ject accordingly. ' S

(b) Travel questions" devel¥pments in 1950 (E/CN 2/103)

© Mr, LUKAC (Secretariat) reviewed the contents of document E/CN 2/103

“and drew attention to the subgects dealt with in its annex III and Summarized on

page li, Those two questinis would be considered under.two other 1tems of the

agenda., , o N ,

' In addition to the‘material'on’travel twoe recent importantfdevelopments
should: be noted. Tha Exeo‘cive ’oard of UNISCO had approved the submission to
the next General Cont:"er o ol AT JCO of & pre,rminaiy study of the possibility
of concluding an inbiew _ncirlal éon7antion reducing roustades . to the free movement
of groups of pericnad ergagl ln edwational, scientific and cultural activities.
“Ag the problem involi: i- r;t it aud visa regulations, it would be dealt with
under item T of the agenda and a summary of the preliminary study would be

‘ circulated ag a document '

'3' As reported in Annex II of document E/CN. 2/103 “the Executive Secretary
“6f ECAFE hsad submitted to the Committee on Industry and Trede at Lahore nine '
recommerdations regarding future action for preomoting 1nternational travel The
Lyt . eight recommendations had nov been adopted by that Committee and subsequentlv
approved ‘by BECAFE, at its seventh Session.

(c) Barriere to the international transport of goods (E/CN 2/10h
~ Efcn. 2/1oyAdd 1)

. . Mr LUKAC (Secretariat) recalled that the Transport and Communications

Commiesion had exemined the problem at its. third and fourth sessions after the

item had been placed on its agenda at the request of the International Chamber of

Commerce, The Economic and Social Council, in 1ts resolution of 12 July. 1950,
/nad requested



E/CN.2/SR.46
Page 8

had requested the Secretary-General to bring that resolution to the notice of the
Interim Commission of the Internationsl Trade Organizationm. l The Secretary-
General had acted accordingly and had received a reply from the Executive
Secretary of the Interim Commission of the ITO, which was guoted 1h

document E/CN.2/104/Add.1, In those circumstances no further action by the
Commission was needed,

It was so egreed,

(a) Uhifiéationiof maritime tonnege measurement (E/CN.2/105)

Mr, LUKAC (Secretariat) said that et 1ts fourth session the Commission’
had resolved that it would be appropriate to leave the guestion of intergovern-
mental acticn on unification of maritime tonnage measurement to the Inter-
Governmental Maritime Consultative Organization (IMCO) when it started work,
and had urged govermnments to continue to study the probvlem, The Secretary-Genere
had communicated to govermments the resolution of the Commission, with special
reference to the paragraph in which. pgoverrments wers urged to conmtinue their
studies. ' . . e :
Only three countries -- Norway; Iceland end the Netherlands ---had thus,
far ratified the 0Oslo Convention for a uniform system of tonnage measurements of

ships, signed in June 1947, .

The CHATRMAN recalled that since the conclwition of the Oslo Convention
another meeting of tonnage experts had been held st Stockholm in June 1950 and
yot another:wes scheduled to be. held at the Hague in 1952, The parties to that
Convention felt that they could not wait indefinitely for IMCO to come.into being
end that some progress should be made towards unification of tonnage measurement.

Mr. BAKER (United States of America) said that the United States had

not yet established its pceition but that 1% would tring its views when ,
determined befcre the proper forum, IMCO, if it had by then ‘been established.

Mr. GOURSAT (France) emphasized the difficulties resulting from lack of -
unification. States parties to the Oslo Convention still had to obtala different
¥onnage certificates for the Suez end Panama Canels. Ho suggested that the -

| | R o Jooumission should



E/CN.2/SR. h6
Page 9 :

Commission should adopt a resolution stating that unification of tonnage meagure -
ment should be one of the most urgent questions to be examined by TCO as soon as
it came Into being. The Secrbtariat could- be asked to prepare the text of such «
resolution,

It was so decided

(o) Problems of maritime éhipping affecting Latin America (E/CN 2/105)

Mr. LUKAC (Secretariat) said that the Commission had examined the
problem &t its third and fourth sessions. As L&tinAAmorican countrles had
failed to forward the necessary information, the Commission had recormended to
the Economic andigocial Council that the question should be withdrawn from ité'
agenda and left to other competent bodies, such as the Economic Commission for
Latin America. In the meantime ECIA head decided to consult the Execit 1ve
Secretary of the Inter-American Economic and Social Council with a view to co-

- operating in the Council's studies on the sub ject, _,On 12 July 1950 the Economic
and Social Council had adopted a resolution refefring the questiocn for examinatior
to the Economic' Commission for lLatin America. ,

The question, therefore, was no.longer on the Commission's agenda and

document E/CN.E/lOG had been circulated for informdtionbpurposes only. |

© = Mr: REYNA- (Venezuela) said that}at‘a_@eeting held lcsp Md& in Caracas
and attended in particular by two lines in which Venezuela was interested, the
Gran Columbiane Line and the Venezuelan Line, a decision had been made to reduce
froight rateés,: Although the decision improved the situetion it did not complete:
d1spose of the problem.g-i» ‘ .

Mr. GOURSAT (France) asked whether it would not be appropriate for the
Cormission to express the wish that ECIA shoﬁld .deal with the subject as soon &8
possible. - Vhen Mr. LUKAC (Secretariat) suggested that the Commission which had
refrained - from studying the problem, might find difficulty in maklng such a
recomméndation, Mr. GOURSAT withdrew his suggestion. .

[(f) Situation



E/CN.2/SR.46
Page 10

(f) Situstion in respect of ‘ratification of the Convention on the
Intergovermmerital Maritime Consultative Organization (E/CN.2/107 and
E/CN.2/107/844 .1)

Mr. LUKAC (Secretariat) recalled ihat at its third session the.
Commission had expressed concérn that the Convention establiehing IMCO had<not
yet come into farce. When confronted with the game poeition at its fourth
gegsion, the Commlseion had recomuended to the Economic and Social Council the
adoption of & .rescolution pointing out to Member Governments that an early
establishment of INCQ vas desirable. The Council had adopted that resolution
unanimously at ite eleventh seeeion. ‘ Thus far the Convention had been ratified
by six.countries: Cenada, Greece Ireland the Netherlands the United Kingdom a
and the Ug%ggdagtgggsf The failure. to eetablish IMCO wes hindering the work ofv"
some of he/agencies in particular the International Telecommunication Union
the Vorld Health Organization end the International Civil Aviation Organization.

Mr, GOURSAT (France) etated that in his country the ratification
procedure was well advanced so that the result would ‘soon be forthcoming.

LG . : gt ' ey . g . - . ) ) .
Mr, FOIEN (Norway) said that his country was now prepared to ratify the
Convention end would be initiating the necessary parliamentary procedure during

the current yegr.

Mr PLAZA (Chile) sald that he was awaiting information from his g
Goverrment on that subject and would inform the Commission 1ater of his country 8
attitude,

. The, CHAIRMAN said that the retification of the Convention by France
and Norway would bring the total number of ratifications up to eight The.k
merchant shipping of aix of thoee countries vag over one million tons and ' that
of the other two was under ons million tons. ‘ According to the Convention IMCO
could not come into being until the Convention hed been ratified by 21 countries
geven of which had to possess a merchant shipping tonnage of at least one million
tons. All were agreed that 1t was essential for IMCO to be established as soon

/es peneible,



E/CN.2/SR.46
Page 11 3 o7

f
¢

as possible, and: the members of the. Commission should impress this nece851ty on
thelr governments. In spite of such wide agreement the guestion hed now drangec
on since 1948. Several specialized agencies were haugersd in thelr woyk

end 1t would be futile for the Commission to go on urging the sstablistment of
IMCO if its action were to have no con_b;rete.;result.» In those circumstances, t.hge v
only's'olution might be to convene ancther international conference to ::educe._ the
number of ratifications required. for thq:establighment of IMQQ-,' The Government
of the’Nétherlands.wbuld be 1n~favour-offconVening.such,a confegqncéf

Mr, BAKER (Umited Statas of #America) wondared what action the Commissior
could take to iniucs a iumgs o waniogr of counsries to retify the Convention. He
wond"ered.what ves the reason Tor the small nuber of. ratifications -- opposition

or mei"ély indifierence?

Mr. LUKAC (Secretariat) thought that both reasons ceme ;lnto playb and
recalled that several countries had never felt very happy about certain provisions
of the Convention. = Scme of them, however, had finally decided to overcome their
objections realizing that thafcgnvention could gerve & useful purpose even in 1ts
present form,

It hed been decided that IMCO should come into being only when it had
been assured solid.support -- hence the prgﬁisionfthat the Convention had to be
ratified by twenty-one States. The number of ratifications usuwally required for
a convention was much smaller, One of the unfortunate results of the large
number required for IMCO was thet no country felt any particular need to hasten
its own ratification,

The CBATRMAN propossed that the discussion on that question should be
postponed, and resumed when the Commission tock up #em 12 of its agenda.

(g) Situation in reapect of ratification of the Convention on Road Traffic
(E/cN.2/108)

Mr., LUKAC (Secretariat) sald that five ratifications were required
before the Convention on Road Traffic could come into force. Thus far it had
been ratified by three countries: Czechoslovekia, Frence and the United States,

/ Czechoslovakia had



E/CN.2/SR.46
Page 12

Czechoslovakie had also ratified the Protocol on Road Signe and Signals, and the
United Statee and France had ratified the Prctocol concerning Countries or
Territogiee at preeent Occupied.

. The Economic and Social Council at ite twelfth session had decided the
West Germany and the Principality of Monaco were eligible to adhere to the
Convention 8o that they could now ratify it end thus increase the totel number
of retificatione to five.

He had been informed by the Norwegian permenent delegation to the
United Nations that the Convention vas now being translated into NorWegian and
thet Norway would examine what changes would have to be made in its own legisla-
tion before it could adhere to that Convention. Norwey also felt that the
Protocol on Road Signs and Signels shonld not come Into force until‘the Committee
of Experte appointed by the Secretary-General to study that problemfhéd com@leted
its work, He recalled that European countries had been most anxious to conclude
that Convention and hoped that they‘would prove thelr earlier interest by
ratifying it as soon as possible. -

The CHAIRMAN epeaking ae representative of the Netherlands eaid that
his country was taking steps to ratify the Convention during the current year.

Bir Oeborne 'MANCE (United Kingdom) sald that hie country also wes
taking etepe to heve the Convention ratified as soon as poseibls,

The meeting rose at 12,30 p.H,

30/3 p.m,





